CITY OF HANOVER
CITY COUNCIL MEETING
JANUARY 5, 2021 - OFFICIAL MINUTES

Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance:

Mayor Chris Kauffman called the regular meeting of Tuesday, January 5, 2021 to order at 7:00 p.m.
Present were Mayor Chris Kauffman, Councilors Ken Warpula, Jim Zajicek, MaryAnn Hallstein and
Thomas Dierberger. Also present was City Attorney Jay Squires, City Planner Cindy Nash, City Engineer
Nick Preisler, City Administrator Brian Hagen, Public Works Supervisor Jason Doboszenski, and
Accountant Jackie Heinz. Guests included Zach Ericson, Sam Jones, Shelby Hulstein, and Steve
Wilhelmy.

Approval of Agenda:
MOTION by Hallstein to approve the agenda, seconded by Warpula. Motion carried unanimously.

Consent Agenda:

MOTION by Warpula to approve the consent agenda, seconded by Hallstein.
a. Approve Minutes of December 15, 2020 City Council Work Session Meeting
b. Approve Claims as Presented:

» Claims $ 177,690.71
> Payroll $ 13,612.39
> PIR taxes & Exp $  4,488.17
> Other Claims $ 2590.82
» Total Claims $ 198,382.09

c. Res No 01-05-21-01 — Approving 2021 Solid Waste Hauler Licenses
Motion carried unanimously.

Citizen’s Forum:
None

Public Hearings:
None

Unfinished Business:

Res No 01-05-21-02 — Approving 2021 Appointments
MOTION by Warpula to approve Res No 01-05-21-02, seconded by Dierberger. Motion carried
unanimously.

New Business:
CSAH 19 & CSAH 123 Access Study

Hagen gave a brief background, as a previous applicant worked through the concept plan, a traffic study
was prepared with indicated rounds abouts and turn lane areas. Hallstein inquired which parcels are owned
by Bryan Reitzner, Hagen indicated on a map and stated this study would be a long-term guiding document
on how the area develops beyond what Reitzner owns. Warpula inquired if the study is done, will
Hennepin County still dictate and the study would be a waste of money, Hagen stated Hennepin County
still holds authority to approve access configurations, but this would aide in identifying specific locations
to the county roads local streets would intersect. Hallstein inquired if it is more or less feasible for the
properties to be something else. We just completed the comp. plan, if the area cannot be commercial how
do we move forward. Preisler stated Hennepin County is not dictating what goes there, the applicant



pulled out after having a plan and Hennepin County came in and disagreed. Preisler stated having the
study ready and then going to the County, they will not feel pressured.

Kauffman inquired about the access Bill’s Superette wanted. Preisler stated Bill’s wanted full access from
every direction. Hennepin County wants CSAH 123 to be the main access point, not CSAH 19, the
applicant stressed for full access on CSAH 19. Preisler stated this would help maintain traffic flow
according to Hennepin County. Kauffman inquired how it coordinates with Wright County plans. Preisler
stated Wright County did not go into this portion. Hagen stated Wright County gave recommendations
and provided data to plan for round abouts through town. Kauffman stated the study needs to be
coordinated for both sides of town.

Warpula inquired how much the study will cost. Preisler stated Hennepin County needs to be contacted
to see what they all need before an accurate proposal could be prepared; traffic counts should not be
needed which would reduce overall costs. Hallstein suggested bringing the study to the EDA for
discussion since this is benefiting multiple property owners, Warpula agreed.

Zajicek inquired how this affects the Hilltop and their access. Hagen stated Hennepin County has say, we
were hoping the projects would progress at the same time. The Hilltop is dependent on future use.
Warpula inquired if Hagen is looking for approval of an amount to be spent on the study. Hagen stated
no, looking for guidance to move forward and work with Hennepin County. Council Consensus to move
forward with the CSAH 19 & CSAH 123 Access Study.

Snowplowing Ordinance & Policy Review
Hagen stated roughly 2 plowings ago, public works went out midday plowing around 2-3 pm. A vehicle
was parked on the road, when we came back through 4 hours later a tow truck was called to remove the
vehicle to allow for curb to curb plowing. The owner of the vehicle was home and prevented the vehicle
from being towed but incurred costs. Hagen stated that is what has triggered this discussion, our ordinance
does not address snow that starts at 8 am and stops at noon.

Zach Ericson — 10630 106" Avenue North — stated he appreciates what everyone does at the City, he
moved here one year ago. Ericson stated around 8:30 pm he saw his truck about to be towed, it had been
on the street for a number of hours, he was going to finish shoveling his driveway yet. Ericson stated he
doesn’t normally leave his vehicle on the street and only a dusting of snow had fallen. Ericson further
stated as the tow was happening, his wife was pulling up the ordinance and could not find the language
where it applied to his situation. Ericson stated they realized after the fact the information was also in the
newsletter and on Facebook posts, he did pay $75.00 but did not get towed. Ericson quoted the overnight
parking ordinance and parking restrictions. Ericson further stated he feels his vehicle was wrongfully
towed and would $75.00 refunded. His truck was not handled well by Junction Towing, if there is any
underbody damage, he is asking the City or Junction Towing to pay for the damages.

Zajicek agreed with Ericson stated public works was overzealous and Ericson should receive a refund of
the $75 tow charge. Zajicek further inquired about someone who works a 12-hour shift, comes home, it
snows while they are sleeping and wake up to find their vehicle is towed. Kauffman stated to look at the
rest of the ordinance, if snow has fallen then no street parking until plowing is done curb to curb. Ericson
stated he has looked at Minneapolis and other cities ordinances and Hanover’s is an overreach.

Hallstein asked what Doboszenski’s insight is. Doboszenski stated when plowing you must take into
consideration the weather coming in behind the storm and the condition of the streets. Doboszenski further
stated snow left in the street turns into a speed bump if not cleaned up and a complaint from other residents.



Ericson stated he respects what Doboszenski does and asked if other vehicles were towed. Doboszenski
stated when vehicles are left on the street, they keep coming back to clear, they will stop with the plow in
front of the house with all the flashing lights going, if there are lights on in the house they will knock on
the door, the last thing they want to do is have a vehicle towed.

Squires noted staff worked within their guidelines of the ordinance and the policy and did not feel the City
is at fault. He further indicated that the ordinance and policy could have some language adjustment so it
is clearer for residents to understand. Hagen asked Council for a consensus on whether to reimburse
Ericson for the tow charge. Consensus was to not reimburse.

Discussion continued on the proposed ordinance language amendment. Squires suggested to not keep the
language “if snow has fallen” and instead use a quantified amount as other cities do and get public works
input. Hagen inquired what level of detail is needed for the ordinance and quoted the snowplowing policy.
Squires stated that language works for giving public works discretion but do the residents understand
when not to. Hagen stated residents will look at the ordinance first. Hallstein suggested Hagen, Squires
and Doboszenski work together to get the ordinance as clear as possible.

Dierberger inquired if there are Facebook posts stating plows are out, Hagen stated staff tries to as much
as possible, posting from home on a Saturday is not ideal but could be done. We will attempt to put more
posts to Facebook when plows are out.

Zajicek brought up discussion of snowplowing policy 800.02 Operations and 800.05 Plow Routes —
Priorities. Zajicek inquired who clears the sidewalk on the Hennepin County side of the vehicle bridge.
Doboszenski stated the city does. Zajicek stated a priority needs to be set for sidewalk clearing. Hagen
explained plowing is done, there is a day of rest and then trails are cleared and asked Doboszenski to
explain the route for clearing. Doboszenski stated the route depends on wind direction, normally start
with the downtown area, but the trails get done in one outing. Zajicek inquired who cleared the sidewalk
on the vehicle bridge, Doboszenski stated staff tried with the loader due to the amount of snow and traffic
we had to stop. Zajicek stated there are only two access points across the river for foot traffic, council
decided to redirect foot traffic to use the vehicle bridge and currently there is only room for one person to
walk. The sidewalk needs to be cleared to the railing. Zajicek further stated how do we tell residents to
go around when we are not maintaining the sidewalk they are supposed to use, residents have 12 hours to
clear and we cannot set a priority. Doboszenski stated there were three snow events in 8 days, to clear the
sidewalk on the vehicle bridge the plow truck must be disassembled and that could not be done because
the next snow event was coming in. The loader was used because the blower could not handle the amount
of snow without the ability to blow the snow into the plow truck.

Zajicek requested the dedication documents of the bridge in 1965 and the resolution passing the approval
of the historic bridge to be used as a snowmobile trail. Zajicek further inquired about a handrail being
installed along the trail from CSAH 19 down to the historic bridge. Kauffman stated we cannot
accommaodate everyone everywhere they want to go. Zajicek stated he does not want to discourage people
from using the trail and inquired if a railing will be installed with the switchback. Hagen noted the
switchback will be a Three Rivers project so it is unknown at this time. He further stated Three Rivers
does not maintain trails in the winter, but does allow cities to clear as we do.

Zajicek stated there needs to be a viable route for pedestrians to cross the river. Hagen stated the slope
from 19 to the historic bridge is too steep and cannot be cleared with equipment, the historic bridge is not
rated for the weight of the snowmobile trail mats and the bobcat. Further, salt cannot be used as it would
run into the river. Kauffman stated the trail would be less safe with a railing as it would encourage use.



Discussion continued regarding the future switchback, three rivers future plans and railing installation. It
was suggested to reach out to Reiztner to acquire the necessary easement to install the switchback sooner.

Reports
Warpula
e Doug Voerding is retiring from reporting after 33 years; He has always been fair and honest with
no fake news and all fact. Council consensus to award Doug with a Vitalization Award.
Hallstein
e Inquired about 15" Street and Holding Escrow, Hagen stated there have been issues with the road,
spots were patched, and the City will be holding financial security until we are satisfied. Preisler
stated Fehn has been notified, met on site, and will look at in the spring.
Kauffman
e Welcomed Tom to the council and stated the next council meeting will take place in person.
Hagen
e Gov. Walz will announce an update tomorrow, at that point we will see what can be opened for
rentals.
¢ Inquired about moving the annual clean up day back to May, Council Consensus was Yyes.
e Final Plat was submitted for Rivers Edge.

Adjournment
MOTION by Warpula to adjourn at 9:08 p.m., seconded by Zajicek. Motion carried unanimously.

APPROVED BY:

Chris Kauffman, Mayor
ATTEST:

Brian Hagen, City Administrator



